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Planning for Post-Secondary Success for 
All Students 
An opportunity to deepen understanding of high school 
students’ experiences to enable development of strategic plans 
that address their needs and promote post-secondary success  
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Proposals Due by 4 p.m. on July 25, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All questions related to the RFP should be submitted via email to EducationRFP@barrfoundation.org. Please 
submit proposals through the online application form. 
 
All RFP materials and updates will be made available on the Barr Foundation website at 
https://www.barrfoundation.org/partners/planning-for-success-rfp. 
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About the Barr Foundation 
 

The Barr Foundation’s mission is to invest in human, natural, and creative potential, serving as 
thoughtful stewards and catalysts. Based in Boston, Barr focuses regionally, and selectively 
engages nationally, working in partnership with nonprofits, foundations, the public sector, and 
civic and business leaders to elevate the arts, advance solutions for climate change, and 
connect all students to success in high school and beyond. Founded in 1997, Barr now has 
assets of $1.7 billion, and has contributed more than $837 million to charitable causes. For 
more information, visit barrfoundation.org. 
  
The Barr Foundation’s Education Program is rooted in the belief that all young people can 
succeed in learning, work, and life. It seeks to open doors to rigorous, personalized education 
so that more young people have real opportunities to thrive. Our portfolio spans New England, 
with emphasis on secondary education, given its vital role in youth development. 
  
With high-quality learning, students can enter college and attain a degree without remediation 
or connect to a certificate program and find a good job. They grow their awareness and abilities 
to be part of vibrant communities. But too many New England students leave high school 
early—or graduate without being prepared for what’s next. They often struggle as adults to 
participate fully in the economy and community where they live. 
  
Schools must change because: 

• Young people learn in different ways. Insights into human development show that new 
approaches to instruction are essential to make high school relevant for all students. 

• The world students live in has changed. Technology and globalization create demands 
for new skills, knowledge, and mindsets in the workforce. 
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Overview of the Opportunity 
 

This Request for Proposals (RFP) is focused on providing a select group of Local Education 
Agencies (LEAs) in New England the opportunity to take a close look at students and their 
experiences in high school and their post-secondary readiness in order to cultivate a 
comprehensive, strategic plan to better serve them. The RFP aligns with Barr’s Education 
program strategy, which seeks to nurture the development and expansion of new secondary 
school models in New England. A thorough analysis of the strengths and needs of the student 
population, as well as the strengths and needs of the schools that serve them, are essential 
building blocks for designing schools and programs that support student success in and beyond 
high school. This RFP responds to the many LEAs across New England seeking to gain a clearer, 
comprehensive understanding of their specific students, including their successes and their 
challenges in preparing them for post-secondary success, to inform future school 
transformation efforts.  
 
We anticipate selecting a cohort of up to five grantees who will receive technical and financial 
support to conduct comprehensive analyses of high school populations, with emphasis on 
examining students’ readiness for post-secondary success. Specifically, through this work, 
grantees will: 

• Gain a nuanced understanding of the students they serve, as well as how the structures, 
systems, and policies in place that impact students’ academic trajectories. Barr will 
directly engage the strategy consulting firm EY-Parthenon on behalf of the grantees to 
conduct the high school student analysis, as well as to provide coaching and support on 
interpreting data, understanding the implications of findings, and translating them into 
actionable plans.1  

• Participate in a facilitated learning community to exchange findings, insights, and ideas 
through convenings, as well as less structured opportunities for interaction with peer 
districts.   

                                                      
1 In August 2017, Barr partnered with Boston Public Schools (BPS) and EY-Parthenon to examine the district’s secondary schools 
in an effort to better understand why and how students continue to fall off track to graduate high school—even while 
graduation rates are on the rise and dropout rates decline. EY-Parthenon led a deep, thorough analysis of students in BPS high 
schools, the path students take, and the school, system, and policy factors that contribute to students falling off track to 
graduate. While BPS’s context is unique within New England, the relevance and value of undergoing this type of examination is 
applicable to a diverse range of LEAs across the region.   

 

https://www.barrfoundation.org/education
https://www.barrfoundation.org/education
https://www.parthenon.ey.com/po/en/expertise/education
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• Develop plans specific to the assets and needs in their context that includes a robust set 
of action steps to address the findings, including school- and systems-level changes 
necessary to improve students’ readiness for success in college and career.   

 
Grantees will receive an award of $150,000 to support their own participation in the analytic 
process and the development of the ensuing plan. In addition to EY-Parthenon’s quantitative 
analysis and coaching, opportunities to collect and analyze qualitative data may also be 
available as warranted. High-quality analyses and plans for how to address the findings are 
essential foundational elements of a successful request for support beyond this grant 
opportunity, and Barr will consider grantee requests for additional support to advance high 
quality plans at the conclusion of the grant period.         
 
Please note the following project timeline. All RFP materials and updates will be made available 
on the Planning for Post-Secondary Success RFP webpage on an ongoing basis.  
 
June 20, 2018   RFP released 
June 28, 2018 at 9:30am Webinar for prospective applicants 
July 25, 2018 by 4:00pm Proposals due 
July-August 2018  Proposal review and follow-up 
September/October 2018 Awards announced 

  

https://www.barrfoundation.org/partners/planning-for-success-rfp
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Context 
 

As shifts in the global economy continue to raise the stakes for young people, it becomes 
increasingly essential that all students have access to a meaningful high school education that 
can lead to completion of post-secondary education and successful entrance into the 
workforce.  
 
While the demands of the 21st century society and economy continue to evolve rapidly, many 
high schools have remained fundamentally unchanged for decades. It’s no surprise, then, that 
the bridge connecting secondary school with post-secondary education and the workforce has 
largely fallen into disrepair. Many students who face personal, academic, or economic 
challenges to attending school disengage, and that process is accelerated if they do not see the 
relevance of continuing their education to their future aspirations. Indeed, even graduating 
high school is not a reliable signal that students are ready for the demands of college and 
career. At the same time, we know that young adults who do not graduate from high school 
have limited educational, economic, and civic opportunities, and tend to experience an array of 
negative life outcomes. Those who fail to earn a high school diploma are nearly twice as likely 
to be unemployed and live in poverty, and a disproportionate number of these students are 
low-income and minority youth.   
 

As awareness about the detrimental effects associated with not obtaining a high school 
diploma has grown, so too have initiatives and programs aimed at raising graduation rates and 
reducing dropout rates. In Massachusetts, for example, the statewide 5-year graduation rate 
climbed from 82.6 percent in 2006 to 89.8 percent in 2016, while the dropout rate has declined 
from 3.4 percent to 1.8 percent in the last decade. While figures such as these indicate positive 
trends in the aggregate, average graduation and dropout rates—as well as measures of post-
secondary outcomes—may mask disparities among student groups within the overall student 
population both across and within districts. For example, among low-income students across 
Massachusetts, the 5-year graduation rate is 80 percent, 46 percent enroll in college, and only 
35 percent persist in college.2   
 

Despite completing the requirements for a diploma, many high school graduates find that they 
are not sufficiently prepared to meet the expectations of college and the workforce.  
Approximately 20 to 30 percent of first-year college students must enroll in at least one 
                                                      
2 Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. District Analysis and Review Tool: Success After High 
School. http://www.doe.mass.edu/dart/ 
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developmental course; the percentage nears 60 percent at some two-year colleges. These 
courses—also known as remedial courses—do not yield college credit, but serve as 
prerequisites to many credit-bearing courses. Students who enroll in developmental courses 
are less likely to graduate than students who enter directly into college-level, credit-bearing 
courses.3  
 
Misalignment between what traditional high schools offer and what post-secondary institutions 
and the workforce expect and require can derail students’ aspirations. For example, without 
adequate preparation, the time and cost to complete a post-secondary credential can be 
prohibitive to many students. Students need early exposure to and guidance through learning 
experiences that elucidate and help them prepare for the realities of college and career. In 
addition, students need opportunities to explore their interests and build the knowledge and 
skills necessary to successfully pursue their chosen post-secondary path. 
 
The high school graduation and post-secondary achievement gaps are challenges that can be 
solved. Having a clear picture and understanding of a student population enables the creation 
of strategically designed high school models and systems that address their needs and promote 
post-secondary success. Far too many students are falling off track—or finding themselves 
unprepared for college and career even if they do graduate—to continue to operate the default 
high school model that is becoming increasingly obsolete as our economy and society rapidly 
evolve.    
 
 

  

                                                      
3Jimenez, L., Sargrad, S., Morales, J. & Thompson, M. (2016) Remedial Education: The Cost of Catching Up. Washington, DC: 
Center for American Progress.  
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Request for Proposal  
 

Barr is seeking proposals from Local Education Agencies (LEAs) interested in examining their 
high school student populations as a key lever to discerning the characteristics and experiences 
of students who are on-track to graduate prepared for post-secondary success. Competitive 
proposals will convey the importance and value of gaining a comprehensive understanding of 
the students they serve and their outcomes, and the capacity to use that knowledge to inform 
policy and practice. To that end, successful applicants will demonstrate a commitment to acting 
on the findings and making the changes—including school- and systems-level changes—
necessary to address the needs, challenges, and assets of their students. 
 
Grantees will be supported to participate in the following five key phases. Across the phases 
there will be approximately four individual meetings with the EY-Parthenon team and six 
learning community convenings. The grantee engagement with the EY-Parthenon team will take 
place across the first four phases (approximately eight months), which will be followed by a 
dissemination and action phase of approximately four months.  
 

1. Community Building and Data Collection: Cohort launch retreat, introductory meeting 
with EY-Parthenon team, and data collection from LEA. (approximately one month) 

2. Analysis: Cohort convening, individual work sessions with EY-Parthenon team, optional 
qualitative analyses focused on the experiences of current high school students, and 
internal meetings to review findings. (approximately three months) 

3. Reflection and Insight Development: Cohort convenings, individual work sessions with 
EY-Parthenon team, and internal meetings to reflect on findings and generate insights. 
(approximately three months) 

4. Planning: Cohort convenings, individual work sessions with EY-Parthenon team, and 
internal meetings to develop and refine individual action plan. (approximately two 
months) 

5. Dissemination and Action: Grantees will be encouraged to engage stakeholders 
throughout these four phases. In addition, at the conclusion of the planning phase 
grantees will share their learnings and plans more broadly. Grantees may also use this 
time to begin to move forward on implementation of the individual action plan. 
(approximately four months) 
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Benefits to Participation 
 
Grantees will gain a nuanced understanding of the students they serve, as well as how the 
structures, systems, and policies in place impact students’ academic trajectories. In addition, 
grantees will be part of a facilitated cohort of communities that share the desire to fully 
understand their student populations as an essential first step toward designing and 
implementing educational environments that fully equip students for productive engagement 
in college, career, and the community. The insights generated through analysis and peer 
support will help grantees articulate their vision for preparing students for lifelong success, 
communicate effectively with the broader community, and seek additional support for their 
efforts. The following provides more details of the four main areas of benefits during the course 
of the grant period.  
 
Financial support. Grantees will receive an award of $150,000 to support participation in the 
analytic process, engagement in the community of practice, and the development of the 
ensuing plan. Barr will consider offering continued support beyond this grant to sites that 
demonstrate readiness to proceed toward implementation of their plans.      
 
Analysis. While many LEAs have access to a number of data sets and analytic tools developed 
internally and/or compiled by state education agencies or other external partners, this 
opportunity offers data collection and analysis specific to each site’s high school student 
population and their readiness for post-secondary success. Some research questions/analyses 
will be common across all grantees, and each grantee also will be able to work with EY-
Parthenon to generate customized questions and corresponding analyses. Further, depending 
on the needs and interests of grantees, Barr will consider supporting optional qualitative 
analyses focused on the experiences of current high school students, which may be used to 
complement the quantitative analyses conducted by EY-Parthenon. 
 
The following are examples of research questions that EY-Parthenon will refine and analyze 
with all grantees: 
 
1. Define “on track to post-secondary success”: 

• What does it mean for students to be on track to post-secondary success? How can 
this be measured based on data available to schools while students are enrolled in 
high school? 

• How many students in each LEA and school are going on to graduate high school and 
experience success in post-secondary education (2- or 4-year)?   

o How does this differ for different subgroups of students? 

• What is the scale of the population in each school or LEA that is not on-track to post-
secondary success? 

• For those students who are not on-track to post-secondary success, how can their 
pathways through high school be defined (E.g., “gradations” of students who are 
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“on-track to graduate high school, not prepared for post-secondary success” vs “off-
track to graduate high school” vs. “disengaged” vs. “dropped out”)? 

o How does the size of each of these segments change over the course of a 
high school cohort? 

2. Understand the predictors that are most powerful for being on-track to post-secondary 
success 

• Where and when are students falling off-track for post-secondary success, and what 
happens to them after they fall behind? 

• Of the students who are not on-track to post-secondary success, how many of them 
had identifiable “warning indicators” during 8th grade? By contrast, how many of 
them appear to fall behind during high school? 

• What are the academic and other school-based experiences in the high school years 
that seem to differentiate between students who are on-track to post-secondary 
success and those who are not? 

• How many students recover to get back on track to post-secondary success once 
they have fallen behind? 

3. Understand how different high schools perform with different types of students: 

• What student outcomes does each high school generate with the different segments 
of the student population, looking at both leading and lagging indicators (e.g., 
attendance, credit accumulation, grades, high school graduation rates, post-
secondary access and success)? 

• Are there any LEAs or schools within the cohort that appear to be having a promising 
level of success at keeping students on-track for post-secondary success, adjusting 
for the demographics of their student population? If so, what could be learned from 
these schools? 

• Are there specific strategies or school models within the cohort of schools that 
appear promising and could be applied in other LEAs/contexts? 

       
Strategic planning. The findings of the analyses may substantiate what LEAs may have already 
suspected, identify trends that educators have been struggling to understand, and/or provide a 
platform upon which to engage the broader community in addressing the LEA’s most pressing 
challenges. However, the findings alone will not be the final product. Grantees will receive 
coaching and support to translate the findings into student-centered action plans to prepare all 
students for successful engagement in college, career, and the community.   
 
Community of practice. The cohort of grantees (up to five LEA teams) will form a community of 
practice that will leverage the data and analysis provided as part of the process to: (a) benefit 
from the collective experience and perspectives of cohort participants, (b) identify leading 
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practices that could be applied in individual contexts, and (c) use the cross-site learnings to 
inform individual action plans. 
 
Grantee Commitment 
 
Successful applicants will identify and convene a working team comprised of key stakeholders 
who will work with the EY-Parthenon analysts and coaches, participate in the community of 
practice, disseminate findings internally and to the broader community, and lead efforts to act 
upon the findings. Working teams should have four to six members, and may include 
superintendents, high school principals, the curriculum/instruction Director, 
data/accountability lead, and other members as needed based on the LEA’s composition (e.g. 
special education or ELL office representatives, teacher leaders, student support staff, etc.). At 
the end of the grant period, grantees will have a clear path forward that includes a robust, 
comprehensive set of next steps to address the findings. 
 
Making substantial changes to policy and practice to significantly improve student outcomes 
requires buy-in and support within the high school(s), LEA, and the broader community.  
Therefore, priority will be given to applicants who describe a transparent, effective process for 
sharing information about the work and engaging stakeholders at each phase. 
 
Grantees will establish a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with EY-Parthenon to share 
the student-level data in order to complete the analysis. The following is a brief summary of the 
data requirements that are expected, which will be for grades 8-12, over a 10-year time period:  

 

• Demographic data (unique student identifier (anonymized), gender, race/ethnicity, 
free/reduced price lunch eligibility, special education status, ELL designation, etc.) 

• Academic data (at the LEA/school level – graduation standards; at the student level – 
which schools and programs students are enrolled in, courses taken/credits received, 
state exams taken and results, outcomes – still in school, graduated, dropped out, 
transferred out of district) 

• Behavioral (attendance, suspensions, etc.)  

• Post-secondary (as available, any data on students’ post-secondary plans and actions) 
 
EY-Parthenon will provide a more specific data request to grantees once the grants are 
awarded, and will work with the LEA to customize the request as possible in order to make it as 
easy as possible to gather the information, without sacrificing the ability to run analyses that 
allows LEAs to compare results with one another and learn from the process of sharing and 
reflection. Further, Barr will consider providing short-term support in the event that additional 
capacity is needed to fulfill the data requirements.  
 
Eligibility 
 
This opportunity is open to Local Education Agencies (LEAs) – including both districts and 
charter school networks – that: 
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• Have at least 1,500 students in grades 9 through 12. 

• Serve a student population comprised of at least 50 percent high needs students 
(i.e., the combination of low income/economically disadvantaged, English language 
learners, and students with disabilities).  

• Are located and serve students in Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New 
Hampshire, Rhode Island, and/or Vermont. 

 
LEAs with one high school or multiple high schools are eligible to apply.    
 
Proposal Support 
 
Prospective applicants are encouraged to engage in the following established opportunities for 
proposal support:  
 

• Webinar for Prospective Applicants: Thursday, June 28, 2018 at 9:30-10:30am  
Please register for the RFP webinar to join us and learn more about this opportunity. We 
strongly encourage questions to be submitted ahead through the registration link. 
 

• Questions related to the RFP should be submitted via email to 
EducationRFP@barrfoundation.org. Responses to questions will be covered during the 

webinar and/or through interaction with individual applicants.  

 
All RFP materials and updates will be made available on the RFP webpage on an ongoing basis.  
 
Proposal Submission 
 
All applications are due by 4:00 PM EST on July 25, 2018. Applications should include all 
elements described below under “Proposal Requirements.”  
 
Complete applications should be submitted via the online application form, which will be 
available for submissions starting on June 20, 2018.  
 
Proposal Requirements 
 
A. Organization Information 
 

• Organization Name   

• Organization Address   

• Main Phone   

• Main Fax   

• Website URL   

• Annual Organization Budget   

• Organization Tax ID   

https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_AhqC5a3LTriC4xzGpRLu8A
mailto:EducationRFP@barrfoundation.org
https://www.barrfoundation.org/partners/planning-for-success-rfp
https://www.tfaforms.com/4680555
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• Organizational Fiscal year 

• Name, title, phone, and email of Chief Executive of your organization   

• Name, title, phone, and email of staff person other than the chief executive managing 

this request (optional)   

• Name, title, phone, and email of lead development staff person handling this request 

(optional)  
 
B. Proposal Narrative 

 
Applicants are asked to submit a narrative proposal describing how conducting in-depth 
analyses of the characteristics and experiences of their high school students will address a 
prevalent need or challenge within the LEA. The maximum length for the Proposal Narrative is 
10 pages. Applicants should respond to the following: 
 

1. Provide an overview of why you are interested in this project. Include in your response 
the key problem or challenge your high school(s) will use this opportunity to investigate. 
 

2. Provide a description of current high school performance and any planning efforts, 
strategies, initiatives, and/or projects currently underway to improve students’ post-
secondary outcomes. If existing work has yielded results and/or measures of progress, 
please describe these as well. 

 
3. What do you already know about the degree to which your high school students are 

successful in and beyond high school? What informs the current picture of students? 
Include in your response the degree to which you already track any post-secondary 
outcomes on your high school graduates. 

 
4. What do you need to know about the students in your high school(s)? Why is this 

information important? Include in your response 3-5 examples of questions about your 
high school students you envision addressing through participation in this project. 
 

5. What are your initial ideas about the types of qualitative analyses (e.g., school 
observational visits, stakeholder focus groups, stakeholder interviews) that might be 
most helpful to supplement the EY-Parthenon quantitative analysis to enable you to 
address what you need to know about your high school students?  

 
6. Describe a specific example of how you have used data recently to inform policy and 

practice.  
 

7. Describe your proposed working team and include an explanation of the expected 
contribution of each member, both throughout the project period and in acting on the 
findings. The working team should include central office and school representatives, and 
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may include other members of the school, LEA, or broader community. A lead data 
contact must be identified.  

 
8. How do you plan to engage stakeholders throughout the process, including acting on 

the findings? Who will be key allies in this work? 
 

9. Given the data requirements outlined under the “grantee commitment” section, what 
capacities do you bring to the project (e.g., data availability, staffing), what questions do 
you have, and what challenges do you anticipate needing support around? Please note 
that responses to this question will help to inform whether Barr should consider 
providing short-term support in the event that additional capacity is needed to fulfill the 
data requirements.  

 
10. Optional: Feel free to include any additional details about your current work that would 

connect to this project, the supports you anticipate needing during the project, and/or 
the questions you have about the project.  

 
C. Grant Period Outputs and Outcomes 

 
Please complete this section using the outputs and outcomes template.   
 
1. List up to five outputs for the planning/design year(s). 

These are the activities, products, or services to be completed or delivered by the 
grantee. As a general rule, if the metric is referring to something the grantee will do, 
then it is an output. 
 

2. List up to five outcomes or results of the planning/design work you intend to do. 
These are the changes in the world that occur as a result of the activities, products, or 
services completed or delivered by the grantee. Put differently, if the outputs are 
successfully completed, these are the benefits that would accrue to participants and/or 
target audiences. 

 

When developing both the outputs and outcomes, please refer to the following five key 
components of a good metric: 

1. WHO will complete the output or be the beneficiary of the outcome? 
2. WHAT is the activity or result expected to be achieved? 
3. BY WHEN will it occur? 
4. HOW MUCH will be done or accomplished (i.e., a quantitative target)? 
5. HOW WILL WE KNOW the result was achieved? 

 
D. Budget Narrative 

 

https://barrfoundation.box.com/s/26642df1au5skveq8u392pwl342zoo47
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Provide a detailed narrative on the use of the up to $150,000 grant using the provided budget 
template for a year-long grant period. These funds cannot be used for ongoing operating costs 
of any school or program, nor can they be used on facilities-related expenses.  
 

E. Organizational Requirements 
 
Please submit the following administrative documents as part of your proposal.  
 

1. Organization budget (income and expense) approved by the board for the fiscal year, 

with the  actual-to-budget comparison for the year-to-date   
2. Name, position, and email of all school committee members 

3. Most recent independent audit or account review (as required by law) for the 

organization, if  applicable   

4. If using additional funding for this potential project, provide a list of companies, 

foundations, and government entities  being approached to fund this proposal, 

including dollar amounts requested and an indication of  which sources are committed, 

pending, or anticipated.   

5. Organizational chart   

6. Diversity Data Form (template can be found here)   

7. 501(c)(3) Determination Letter, if applicable   
 

https://barrfoundation.box.com/s/yryst9eu2q8zokh7czo33t1lenyjqog1
https://barrfoundation.box.com/s/yryst9eu2q8zokh7czo33t1lenyjqog1
https://barrfoundation.box.com/s/o9nmkrirjg5jw5wbn1zpnp57dqibwyd9
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